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Summary of Proposal
(1) Number of forms submitted: One

(2) Title of form: Questionnaire for
Producers of Apparel in Haiti.

(3) Type of request: New.

(4) Frequency of use: Single data
gathering, scheduled for Aug—Sept 2007.

(5) Description of respondents: Firms
in Haiti that produce apparel.

(6) Estimated number of respondents:
Est. 20 (Apparel assembly operators in
Haiti).

(7) Estimated total number of hours
for all respondents combined to
complete the forms: 300 hours.

(8) Information obtained from the
form that qualifies as confidential
business information will be so treated
by the Commission and not disclosed in
a manner that would reveal the
individual operations of a firm.

Additional Information or Comment:
Copies of the forms and supporting
documents may be obtained from the
Commission’s Web site at: http://
www.usitc.gov/ind_econ_ana/
research_ana/Ongoing_Inv.htm, or
William Deese, Co-Project Leader (202—
205-2626, william.deese@usitc.gov), or
Russell Duncan, Co-Project Leader (202—
708—4727; russell.duncan@usitc.gov).
Comments about the proposals should
be directed to the Office of Management
and Budget, Office of Information and
Regulatory Affairs, Room 10102 (Docket
Library), Washington, DC 20503,
ATTENTION: Docket Librarian. All
comments should be specific, indicating
which part of the questionnaire is
objectionable, describing the concern in
detail, and including specific suggested
revisions or language changes. Copies of
any comments should be provided to
Robert Rogowsky, Director, Office of
Operations, U.S. International Trade
Commission, 500 E Street, SW.,
Washington, DC 20436, who is the
Commission’s designated Senior Official
under the Paperwork Reduction Act.

Persons with mobility impairments
who will need special assistance in
gaining access to the Commission
should contact the Secretary at 202—
205-2000. Hearing impaired individuals
are advised that information on this
matter can be obtained by contacting
our TTD terminal (telephone no. 202—
205-1810). General information
concerning the Commission may also be
obtained by accessing its Internet server
(http://www.usitc.gov).

By order of the Commission.

Issued: June 28, 2007.

Marilyn R. Abbott,

Secretary to the Commission.

[FR Doc. E7—12988 Filed 7—3—07; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 7020-02-P

INTERNATIONAL TRADE
COMMISSION

[Inv. No. 337-TA-609]

In the Matter of Certain Buffer Systems
and Components Thereof Used in
Container Processing Lines; Notice of
Investigation

AGENCY: U.S. International Trade
Commission.

ACTION: Institution of investigation
pursuant to 19 U.S.C. 1337.

SUMMARY: Notice is hereby given that a
complaint was filed with the U.S.
International Trade Commission on May
31, 2007, under section 337 of the Tariff
Act of 1930, as amended, 19 U.S.C.
1337, on behalf of Sidel Participations
of France, Sidel Canada Inc. of Canada,
and Sidel Inc. of Norcross, Georgia. A
supplement to the complaint was filed
on June 18, 2007. The complaint, as
supplemented, alleges violations of
section 337 in the importation into the
United States, the sale for importation,
and the sale within the United States
after importation of certain buffer
systems and components thereof used in
container processing lines by reason of
infringement of U.S. Patent No.
6,168,005. The complaint, as
supplemented, further alleges that a
domestic industry exists in the United
States as required by subsection (a)(2) of
section 337.

The complainants request that the
Commission institute an investigation
and, after the investigation, issue a
permanent general exclusion order and
permanent cease and desist orders.

ADDRESSES: The complaint and
supplement, except for any confidential
information contained therein, are
available for inspection during official
business hours (8:45 a.m. to 5:15 p.m.)
in the Office of the Secretary, U.S.
International Trade Commission, 500 E
Street, SW., Room 112, Washington, DC
20436, telephone 202—-205-2000.
Hearing impaired individuals are
advised that information on this matter
can be obtained by contacting the
Commission’s TDD terminal on 202—
205-1810. Persons with mobility
impairments who will need special
assistance in gaining access to the
Commission should contact the Office
of the Secretary at 202—205-2000.
General information concerning the
Commission may also be obtained by
accessing its Internet server at http://
www.usitc.gov. The public record for
this investigation may be viewed on the
Commission’s electronic docket (EDIS)
at http://www.usitc.gov/secretary/
edis.htm.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: ]uan
S. Cockburn, Esq., Office of Unfair
Import Investigations, U.S. International
Trade Commission, telephone (202)
205-2572.

Authority: The authority for institution of
this investigation is contained in section 337
of the Tariff Act of 1930, as amended, and
in section 210.10 of the Commission’s Rules
of Practice and Procedure, 19 CFR 210.10
(2006).

Scope of Investigation: Having
considered the complaint, the U.S.
International Trade Commission, on
June 26, 2007, ordered that—

(1) Pursuant to subsection (b) of
section 337 of the Tariff Act of 1930, as
amended, an investigation be instituted
to determine whether there is a
violation of subsection (a)(1)(B) of
section 337 in the importation into the
United States, the sale for importation,
or the sale within the United States after
importation of certain buffer systems
and components thereof used in
container processing lines by reason of
infringement of one or more of claims 1,
3,4, 6-8, and 17 of U.S. Patent No.
6,168,005, and whether an industry
exists in the United States as required
by subsection (a)(2) of section 337;

(2) For the purpose of the
investigation so instituted, the following
are hereby named as parties upon which
this notice of investigation shall be
served:

(a) The complainants are—Sidel
Participations, Avenue de la Patrouille
de France, BP 204 Octeville-sur-Mer,
76053 Le Havre Cedex, France; Sidel
Canada Inc., 1045 Autoroute Chomedey,
Laval, Quebec H7W 4V 3, Canada; Sidel
Inc., 5600 Sun Court, Norcross, Georgia
30092.

(b) The respondents are the following
entities alleged to be in violation of
section 337, and are the parties upon
which the complaint, as supplemented,
is to be served: Krones AG,
Béhmerwaldstra e 5, 93073
Neutraubling, Germany; Krones Inc.,
9600 South 58th Street, Franklin,
Wisconsin 53132—6241; KHS AG,
Juchostrasse 20, 44143 Dortmund,
Germany; KHS USA, Inc., 880 Bahcall
Court, Waukesha, Wisconsin 53186.

(c) The Commission investigative
attorney, party to this investigation, is
Juan S. Cockburn, Esq., Office of Unfair
Import Investigations, U.S. International
Trade Commission, 500 E Street, SW.,
Room 401, Washington, DC 20436; and

(3) For the investigation so instituted,
the Honorable Paul J. Luckern is
designated as the presiding
administrative law judge.

Responses to the complaint and the
notice of investigation must be
submitted by the named respondents in
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accordance with section 210.13 of the
Commission’s Rules of Practice and
Procedure, 19 CFR 210.13. Pursuant to
19 CFR 201.16(d) and 210.13(a), such
responses will be considered by the
Commission if received not later than 20
days after the date of service by the
Commission of the complaint and the
notice of investigation. Extensions of
time for submitting responses to the
complaint and the notice of
investigation will not be granted unless
good cause therefor is shown.

Failure of a respondent to file a timely
response to each allegation in the
complaint and in this notice may be
deemed to constitute a waiver of the
right to appear and contest the
allegations of the complaint and this
notice, and to authorize the
administrative law judge and the
Commission, without further notice to
the respondent, to find the facts to be as
alleged in the complaint and this notice
and to enter an initial determination
and a final determination containing
such findings, and may result in the
issuance of an exclusion order or cease
and desist order or both directed against
the respondent.

By order of the Commission.
Issued: June 28, 2007.
Marilyn R. Abbott,
Secretary to the Commission.
[FR Doc. E7-12989 Filed 7-3-07; 8:45 am]|
BILLING CODE 7020-02-P

INTERNATIONAL TRADE
COMMISSION

Investigation Nos. 701-TA-444-446 (Final)
and 731-TA-1107-1109 (Final)

Coated Free Sheet Paper From China,
Indonesia, and Korea

AGENCY: United States International
Trade Commission.

ACTION: Scheduling of the final phase of
countervailing duty and antidumping
investigations.

SUMMARY: The Commission hereby gives
notice of the scheduling of the final
phase of countervailing duty
investigation Nos. 701-TA—444—-446
(Final) under section 705(b) of the Tariff
Act of 1930 (19 U.S.C. 1671d(b)) (the
Act) and the final phase of antidumping
investigation Nos. 731-TA-1107-1109
(Final) under section 735(b) of the Act
(19 U.S.C. 1673d(b)) to determine
whether an industry in the United
States is materially injured or
threatened with material injury, or the
establishment of an industry in the
United States is materially retarded, by
reason of subsidized and less-than-fair-

value imports from China, Indonesia,
and Korea of coated free sheet paper,
provided for in subheadings 4810.13.19,
4810.13.20, 4810.13.50, 4810.13.70,
4810.14.19, 4810.14.20, 4810.14.50,
4810.14.70, 4810.19.19, and 4810.19.20
of the Harmonized Tariff Schedule of
the United States.?

For further information concerning
the conduct of this phase of the
investigations, hearing procedures, and
rules of general application, consult the
Commission’s Rules of Practice and
Procedure, part 201, subparts A through
E (19 CFR part 201), and part 207,
subparts A and C (19 CFR part 207).
DATES: Effective Date: June 4, 2007.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Debra Baker (202—205-3180), Office of
Investigations, U.S. International Trade
Commission, 500 E Street SW.,
Washington, DC 20436. Hearing-
impaired persons can obtain
information on this matter by contacting
the Commission’s TDD terminal on 202—
205-1810. Persons with mobility
impairments who will need special
assistance in gaining access to the
Commission should contact the Office
of the Secretary at 202—205-2000.
General information concerning the
Commission may also be obtained by
accessing its internet server (http://
www.usitc.gov). The public record for
these investigations may be viewed on
the Commission’s electronic docket
(EDIS) at http://edis.usitc.gov.
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

Background. The final phase of these
investigations is being scheduled as a
result of affirmative preliminary
determinations by the Department of
Commerce that certain benefits which
constitute subsidies within the meaning
of section 703 of the Act (19 U.S.C.
1671b) are being provided to
manufacturers, producers, or exporters
in China, Indonesia, and Korea of coated

1For purposes of these investigations, the
Department of Commerce has defined the subject
merchandise as coated free sheet paper and
paperboard of a kind used for writing, printing or
other graphic purposes. Coated free sheet paper is
produced from not-more-than 10 percent by weight
mechanical or combined chemical/mechanical
fibers. Coated free sheet paper is coated with kaolin
(China clay) or other inorganic substances, with or
without a binder, and with no other coating. Coated
free sheet paper may be surface-colored, surface-
decorated, printed (except as described below),
embossed, or perforated. The subject merchandise
includes single- and double-side-coated free sheet
paper; coated free sheet paper in both sheet or roll
form; and is inclusive of all weights, brightness
levels, and finishes. The terms “wood free”” or “art”
paper may also be used to describe the imported
product. Excluded from the scope are (1) coated free
sheet paper that is imported printed with final
content printed text or graphics; (2) base paper to
be sensitized for use in photography; and (3) paper
containing by weight 25 percent or more cotton
fiber.

free sheet paper, and that such products
are being sold in the United States at
less than fair value within the meaning
of section 733 of the Act (19 U.S.C.
1673b). The investigations were
requested in a petition filed on October
31, 2006, by NewPage Corporation,
Dayton, OH.

Participation in the investigations and
public service list. Persons, including
industrial users of the subject
merchandise and, if the merchandise is
sold at the retail level, representative
consumer organizations, wishing to
participate in the final phase of these
investigations as parties must file an
entry of appearance with the Secretary
to the Commission, as provided in
section 201.11 of the Commission’s
rules, no later than 21 days prior to the
hearing date specified in this notice. A
party that filed a notice of appearance
during the preliminary phase of the
investigations need not file an
additional notice of appearance during
this final phase. The Secretary will
maintain a public service list containing
the names and addresses of all persons,
or their representatives, who are parties
to the investigations.

Limited disclosure of business
proprietary information (BPI) under an
administrative protective order (APO)
and BPI service list. Pursuant to section
207.7(a) of the Commission’s rules, the
Secretary will make BPI gathered in the
final phase of these investigations
available to authorized applicants under
the APO issued in the investigations,
provided that the application is made
no later than 21 days prior to the
hearing date specified in this notice.
Authorized applicants must represent
interested parties, as defined by 19
U.S.C. 1677(9), who are parties to the
investigations. A party granted access to
BPI in the preliminary phase of the
investigations need not reapply for such
access. A separate service list will be
maintained by the Secretary for those
parties authorized to receive BPI under
the APO.

Staff report. The prehearing staff
report in the final phase of these
investigations will be placed in the
nonpublic record on October 2, 2007,
and a public version will be issued
thereafter, pursuant to section 207.22 of
the Commission’s rules.

Hearing. The Commission will hold a
hearing in connection with the final
phase of these investigations beginning
at 9:30 a.m. on October 18, 2007, at the
U.S. International Trade Commission
Building. Requests to appear at the
hearing should be filed in writing with
the Secretary to the Commission on or
before October 10, 2007. A nonparty
who has testimony that may aid the
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